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The James Ballantine house was built in 1877 and has remained virtually unchanged since 
that time. It had been owned and occupied continuously by the Ballantine family until 
1937 when, upon the death of James 1 wife, Abbie Ballantine, it was abandoned as a 
dwelling and used to store miscellaneous family iteias. From 1937 to 1975 the house 
remained unoccupied and, as a result, no alterations of any kind were made. Most of 
the interior fixtures and appurtenances remain intact despite nearly forty years of 
neglect.

The Ballantine house is a two-and-one-half story building with a one-and-one-half story 
rear wing. With its locally manufactured red brick and its stone trim, it typifies 
High Victorian houses in the area. At the front of the house is a double door behind 
a central front porch with tall, thin columns with abstracted Ionic capitals and tall, 
heavy pedestals. Above these columns the cornices are decorated with modillions, and 
scalloped molding enriches the frieze. These same decorative elements are applied at 
each floor level above the bay windows as well as at the cornices below the hipped roofs 
of both the main body of the house and the rear wing. Flanking the porch at either side 
are two-story wood frame bay windows with attenuated attached columns and segmental 
arches over the tall window openings. The rest of the windows on the main body of the 
house repeat this shape. The round stone arch which forms the fanlight over the front 
doors reads "A. D. 1877."

Overall, the house is symmetrical in massing along the front-to-rear axis with the 
exception of the one-story bay window on the west side. The hipped roof of the main 
body of the house has been truncated to form a small "widow's walk." The foundation 
walls are locally quarried stone and there are window wells below the bay windows and 
at the sides of the house.

The interior of the Ballantine house remains remarkably authentic. Very few changes were 
made before the house was abandoned. Doors throughout the house are solid-core wood and 
retain their original finish in most cases: light wood frames with dark wood inset 
panels. Surrounding the doors and windows are very wide articulated moldings which 
retain their simulated wood graining. Framing each of the bays is a heavily-molded 
archway and each archway is given its own decorative treatment with varying ornament 
and applied materials. The original plasterwork (crafted by skilled labor imported from 
the east coast for this job) remains intact, showing few cracks despite a marked settling 
of the foundation walls. Many ceilings have floral bosses and gold leafed cornices. 
Ceilings on the first floor are nearly fourteen feet high and on the second floor they are 
twelve feet.

At the center of the house is a very spacious stairwell with elaborately decorated wood 
stringers. Decorative wood handrails and balusters return to large, heavy newel posts 
which reflect the design of the column bases on the exterior. At both the stairways 
between the first and third floors is a statuary niche. The stairwell is naturally 
lit and ventilated by means of windows at the front of the house and by a pyramidal 
skylight which also serves as the entrance to the roof deck.

Presently, the Ballantine house is in a state of disrepair due to its many years of
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The James Ballantine house has been referred to as "one of the most beautiful homes in 
Grant County."1 Biographical sketches of James Ballantine will invariably mention 
this house in terms such as "one of the finest brick residences in Grant County" and 
"a monument to the taste and liberality of her [Mrs. Ballantine's] husband." Archi­ 
tecturally, it is a very good example of vernacular High Victorian Italianate style. 
Elements of the exterior which place it in this category are its red brick and light 
stone trim construction (which is characteristic of Grant County), its stilted seg- 
mentally arched windows, its bay windows, its balustraded balcony and roof deck 
(balustrades temporarily removed), its gently-sloped hipped roof, and its open verandas 
on both sides of the rear wing. Decorative elements tend to be rather geometric in 
design and subtle in application such as the brackets and modillions which decorate 
the cornice under the wide eaves, and the attached columns which enrich the bay windows, 
The same decorative elements are repeated over the entire exterior of the house serving 
to unify the design.

The interior of the house derives part of its historic architectural significance from 
the fact that virtually nothing has been altered since the house was built (with the 
exception of the electrical fixtures). Decorative elements are used extensively 
throughout the interior as was common in the houses of very wealthy and socially 
prominent men. This decoration varies widely throughout the house and remains intact. 
Tha tall, plastered walls of the first two floors of the house have remained unpapered 
and still retain their original calcimine paint. Hand painted floral and grape- 
cluster designs are still visible on the walls at the ceiling lines. Fixtures and 
appliances throughout the house date back to the construction of the house (or the 
date that they were installed in cases such as electric fixtures).

Mechanical systems in the house are noteworthy in their unusual utilization of natural 
elements. Rain water from the roof gutters was piped into a holding tank in the maid's 
quarters and then down through a chamber behind the kitchen stove to produce running 
hot water from the stove and in a nearby sink. A crude air conditioning system was 
also used in the house consisting of a huge furnace (capable of burning cords of five 
foot logs) which sat on a bed of large rocks. Spring water was then piped around these 
rocks to produce cool air in the summer and humidified hot air in the winter. The 
treated air was then fed through vertical air ducts inside the structural brick walls 
of the stairwell. The masonry-encased ducts seem to indicate that this system is an 
original part of the house, although the extensive records of purchases made during
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neglect. Years of flooding in the basement have produced serious structural 
flaws in the foundation walls resulting in unequal settling of the house. 
Storage of fertilizer has corroded the surfaces of several of the floorboards 
and storage of buckwheat has bred rats and insects which have left their 
marks in places around the house. Many of the original fixtures have been 
removed during restoration and a few will not be replaced because of advanced 
states of deterioration. Much of 'the exterior trim is in storage until the 
present owners can restore and replace it. At this time, the owners have 
sealed the house from further deterioration and have contracted for the 
foundation walls to be repaired. They are in the process of restoring the 
house to its original elegance.
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the construction of the house do not mention this system specifically. Due 
to extreme deterioration of the furnace as a result of basement flooding, 
it became necessary to remove the air conditioning system and it is unlikely 
that it can be replaced in its entirety.

The house also derives significance as the home and business office of its 
original owner, James Ballantine, who has been referred to as "one of the 
pioneers of Grant County."1 After losing one leg in a farm accident, he 
conducted his money lending, nursery, and stock breeding businesses from the 
front office of his house and built an estate of more than a quarter of a 
million dollars by the time of his death in 1895.
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